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This is the Transcript of the South‘Carolina‘Workers'
Compenéatiﬁn Hearing of Kevin M. Wikel versus PC Metro
Bottling, taken before Gloria Davis,‘a Court Reporter énd
Notary Public in and for the State of South Carolina,
commencing at the héur of 11:02 A.M., Tuesday, December 1,
2015, at Yemassee Lowcouptry Council of Governments, 634

Campground Road, Yemassee, South Carolina.
CorY

REPORTED
BY

GLORIA DAVIS

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
~ 321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
- (803) 358-0515
www.PalmettoCourtReporting.com



APPEARANCES

" FOR THE CLAIMANT:

William Thomas Bacon, IV, Esquire
McDougall Law Firm, LLC

115 Lady's Island Commons
Beaufort, SC 29907

FOR THE EMPLOYER/CARRIER:

Andrew D. Smith, Esquire

Goodman, McGuffey, Lindsey & Johnson
147 Wappo Creek Drive, Suite 204
Charleston, SC 29412

ALSO PRESENT:

*Reporter's Note: -- Indicates incomplete thought or
sentence, trailing off or interruption by speakers.
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STIPULATIONS ’

Commissioner Wilkerson: Tdday's date is
the 1st day of December, 2015. We're here in
reference to Workers’ Comp file number
1405219. The Claimant in today's_case'is-‘
Kevin M. Wikel; he is represented by -- I've
got so many names in here but I don’t have
Tom Bacon -- Tom Bacon. The Employer is PC
Metro Bottling; the Carrier is Indemnity
Insurance Company of North America and they
are'represented by Andy Smith. Here again,'
the date of accident we have on the 12-A is
5/2/2014; I'm not saying that’s right, that’'s
just what I’ve got on the 12-A, that’s how I
have t6 call the case. The average weekly
wage is eight fifty-seven, oh seven
($857.07); thus the comp rate is five
seventy-one, sixty-seven ($571.67). We're
here to determine the issues that are set
forth on a Form 50 and 51. I know there is
one 50 in there that says 5/12, I undgrstand
there might be another one that says 5/9; I'm
going to let you all straighten all of that
out on the record, okay? Are there‘anyl
objections to APAs, jurisdiction, venue or
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any other items by tﬁe moving party, Mr.
Bacon? |

Mr. Bacon: -Néne.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Mr. Smith?

Mr. Smith: None, Your Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Without
objection the Commission’s file becomes part

of the record with the exception of

sélf—serving declarations and unstipulatedr

medical reports.. Mr. Bacon, I'm going to get

you to, hopefully, to clear up your part of
it and then maybe Mr. Smith can cléar.ﬁp or
verify what it.is you’ve go£ once in
respbnse: So, if you would, put your
client’s position on the record.

Mr; Bacpn: Thank you, Commissioner.

Tém Bacon‘on behalf of Kevin Wikel. Kevin

- was working as a merchandiser for PepsiCo.

‘He had worked a thirteen (13) day stretch

from about April 23rd through May 6th of
2014. Unloading cases and setting ﬁp pallets
is essentially what a merchandiser does,
Commissioner. It was during this thirfeen
(13) day period,that he_develoﬁed some low
back péin. He was then off work for a
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
-321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515 )
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scheduled two (2) day off on the 7th and 8th,

and then on May the 9th he returned to work

and essentially realized, at that point while
doing the process, he was having, again,

increased low back pain and was not able to

"perform his job duties. So, he reported the

incident on May the ch'to_his'supervisors,
Eric and Léndon, was instructed to call
JOB~-HURT, did éo; we’ve provided you a copy
of that transcript for your review. And in
th?t he indicates that he hurt his back. He
does tell the lady that he hurt his back
wﬁile lifting in the process of his

employment. He then presents to Doctor’s

- Care as in -- is instructed on May the 9th

and those records, again, indicate low back
pain from lifting and bending with pain going
down the left leg. MRIs were confirmed a
disk herniation and Dr. Strohméyer
recommended conservative treatment, which at
first was beneficial with a course of three
(3) epidural injections. Those epidural
injections wore off after a period of three
(3) to four (4) months, Commissioner, and he
returned to Dr. Strohmeyer with the same
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
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complaints and, as such, Dr. St;ohmeyer
performed a microdiscectomy on- April 2nd of
2015. Claimant then went through
post-operative physical therapy and was
released to return to work on June 29 of
2015, at maximum medical improvement, with
ten percent (10%) impairment to the low back,
thirtéen percent (13%) impairment to the left
leg and recommendations for future medical
but no work restriétions. It’'s ;ur position,
Commissioner, that the Claimant suffered a
compensable injury by-accident on May the 9th
while liftin§ fhe product as part of his
normal job duﬁies. .He réported the incident
timely and the Employe; then directed his .

medical care through Doctor’s Care.- His case

‘was later denied on the basis that there was

some discrepancy as to whether his date of
accident was-Mayvthe 2nd or May the 9th but I
think, Commissioner, based on the teétimony
you’ll hear today from Mr. Wikel.that the
substantial evidence will show that the
ipjury that took him out of work occurred 6n
May the 9th.
Mr. Smith: And --
' PALMETTC COURT REPQRTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
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Commissidner Wilkerson: Pléase, Mr.
Smith. -

Mr. Smith: -~ Your Honor, just for
clarification, it was -- the original Form 50
had a date of accident of May 12 not May 9th
when it)was denied.

Mr. Bacon: Commissioner, the Form 50
that,we're.here on --

Mr. Smith: I --

Mr. Bacon: -- was amended --
Mr. Smith: -- you said it was
originally denied based on the fact of -- of

Commissione¥ Wilkerson: May 2nd.

Mr. Smith: -~ it would -- date of
accident May 9th and -- ana you --'May 12th
was on the 12-A but that -- when we o
originally denied the claim -~

Commissioner Wilkerson: No, May --

Mr. Smith: -- we were —-

Commissioﬁer Wilkérson: -~ May 2nd was
| on the 12-A.

‘Mr. Smith: -- yes, Your Honor. And

then they filed -- they originally filed a

Form 50, which was for a date of accident is

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING _ ¢
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May 12th --
Commissioner Wilkerson: Right.

- Mr. Smith: -- and thén that’s when we
madé our denial. But when he was making his
statement he indicated we made our denial on
the May 9th date.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Oh, I see what
you’re saying, May 9th date. But you --

Mr. Smith: So, now -- we’re now dealing

‘with a May 9th date.

. Commissioner Wilkerson: -- okay. I'm

fine.

Mr. Bacon: . Yes.

Commissioner Wiikersdn:_ And it’s --

Mr. Smith: So --

Commissioner Wilkerson:>_-- and it's
still denied on May 9£h?

Mr. Smith: -- yes, Your Honor. And,
Your Honor, can I respectfully reéuest that

we turn to the addendum on the Form 58 of the

submissions so I can essentially -- it’s --
it’s on -- it’s right here, Your Honor. I'm

sorry.
Commissioner Wilkerson: And it was
brought today?
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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Mr. Smith: érought -=- no. No.

Cémmissioner Wilkerson: Oh, I'm sorry.
I thought you'meant.that it was filed. Oh,
okay,.I’m.sorry.

| Mr. Smith: So, we-have an individual

that calls JOB-HURT on May 9th, 2014, and
tells thé 1-800-JOB-HURT operator, which we
have a transcript of, that the injury
occurred on May 2nd, 2014, that’s why the

12-A reflects an injury on May 2nd. Then he

" essentially told them that he couldn’t

remember really what happened and he says he
believes it was a Publix. Well, obvipusly,
he has a prgponderance of the evidence to
meet by the statﬁﬁe thaf he injured himself
at work ana it arose out of employment. And
he says, I don’t even know hdw it happened;.
it was at Publix; énd truthfuliy, thaf’s a

denial based on -- based on its own, not only

_-— because they had the wrong date. Then he

was questioned by Mark Drutch, which we also
have that in on May 12th. And, again, he
tell§ Mark Drutch, the representative, that
he didn’t know how he injured himself, he
believed he injured himself on May 2nd but he
PALMETTOTCOURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
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had been working three (3) days -- or

thirteen (13) days stréight. Then the

attorney originally.filed a Form 50 for May

12th, 2014. The deposition was conducted.

When I conducted the Claimant’s deposition, I

‘was going into it thinking it was going to be

a May 2nd alleged date of accident and what

i
he told me during the deposition on Septembér
5th, 2014, that he actually injured himself

on May 6th at a Walmart and, again, he told

the operator -- on the same day that he

1
allegedly hurt himself he called -- so,
they're -- saying injury by accident, May
9th. He called that 1-800-JOB-HURT operator

that same day and said I don’t know how I

‘injured myself.. Now, I'm deposing him on

July of 2000 -- I'm sorry, in Sepﬁember of
2014, asking him how did you injure yourself.
And then he tola me he injured himself on May
6th at a Walmart and then hg re-injured
himself on May 9th, 2014, at a Walmart, and
he reported specific mechanisms of injury.
Importantly, and again I.can'tvStress the
significance of this factor, that he‘calléd
May 9£h,»2014, and his testimony under oath
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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was that he did lift a case of Aquafina on

4

May 9th, 2014, when he felt a pain in his

‘back and that's when he decided he injured it

and he was at Walwmart. That same day he
called 1-800-JOB-HURT said he didn’t know how
he did it, been working thirteen (133 days,

straight, it may have been May 2nd, and then

he goes on and'tells all the other doctors

" and never mentions the May 6th -- May -- May

9th day. So, I'm surprised at the deposition
that this is even happening. And then -- and
then, we - we go dan further and Dr.
Strohmeyer has already opinioned that the
Claimant never reported a épecific mechanism

of injury to him and with a reasonable degree

_of medical certainty he said it’s not a

repetitive trauma. They filed a Form 50; it
was a pending motion today alleging both
injury by aCcidént and repetitive trauma due
to the discrepancies. And it’s also |
important to note, Youf Honor, this Claimant
stopped working for us in June of 2014,
shortly afﬁér this accident. He went to

Doctor’s Care on May 9th and May 16th: He

_ was placed on work restrictions of ten (10)

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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pounds lifting. And then he goes out on --

what does he do? He goes to Walmart on May

10th, 2014, and applies for a full time

position, said -~ and has hours open, wofk
evenings, nights, weekends; no matter what.
So, right in the midst of this claim he’s --
he’s filling out an application for
employment at Walmart and sayiﬁg that he’'s

ready, willing and able to work any hours,

any days when he -- when he’s on work
restrictions. Then -- and so, he hasn’t
worked for us for -- since June of 2014.

Then he continues to work for Walmaré, hasn’t

worked for us again. And then on November of

‘2014, he reports to Dr. Strohmeyer that he is

a hundred percent (100%) better, and this is
obviously fivé (5) months after he’s -- he’s
wofked for us. And I can turn you to that
page in the -- in the APAs, Your Honor, but
he says I'm a hundred percent (100%) better
and he is reieased. He doesn’t come back
till February, 2015, to -- back to Dr.
Strohmeyer and this whole time he has been
working for Walmart. And now, they -- we get

1

a new Form 50 alleging a date of accident as

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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May Sth. And tﬁén, so I re-depose him. He
admittedly read his entire.transcript before
I re-dosed him. vHé agreéd_to all of his
prior statements and assertions; he said they
were truthful, honest, to the best of his )
recollection and he ;estified truthfully

under oath. And so, really what we have is,

' we have him alleging a date of May 2nd to the

JOB-HURT operator, we have in the deposition
May 9fh, May 6th and then him telling the two
(2) doctors that he really doesn’t know when
he hurt himself,.and then telling Mark
Drutch, I think it wavaay 2nd; I don’t
really’know how I hurt myself. Obviously
they have the burden to prove if it;s injury
by accident -or repetitive traumé; it sounds
likeAtﬁey’re going from thé opening
sﬁatemenﬁ, inju;y by accident on May 9th. So

Commissioner Wilkerson: That’s what I
heafd; their position was injury by accident
bnAMay 9th is what I heard.

Mr. Smith: -- so --

Commis;ioner Wilkerson: And that’s what
we are going to try today, injury by accident

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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on May 9th.

Mr. Smith: -- and -- and I’1l -- I‘ll
refer to all the APAs during cross, Your
Honor.

\ Cohmissioﬁer Wilkerson: Okay.
Court ﬁepprter:' The Court Reporter
needs the spelling of Mark --
‘ Mr. Smith: Drutch, D—R-U—i—C-H.
Court Reporter: -- thank you.
Mr. Smith: Sure.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. Anything

else? You were standing up earlier; I was

" trying -- is there anything else?.

Mr. Bacon: No, Yodr Honor, I was
allowing Mr. Smith to --

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay.

Mr. Bacon: -- speak.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. Are we
ready? |

Mr. Smith: - Yes.

Mr. Bacon: Yes.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Sir, I’1l1l get
you to raise your right hand; we’ll take some

testimony after we swear you in.
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Kevin Matthew Wikel, being duly sworn and cautioned to

\

speak the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,

testified as follows:

Court Reporter: Please state your full
name for the record.
Witness: Kevin Matthew Wikel.
qurt Reporter: Thank you, sir.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
Mr. Baéon:
| Kevin, how old are you?'
Twenty-five (25).
What’s your highest level of education?
High school.
After you finished high schooi, tell me about
where you went to work?
I was a -- when I was.in high school and after I
graduated, I was still with Golden Corral.
And what was the highest level you achieved at
Golden Corral?
Manager.
Okay. After you left Gélden Corral, where did you
go to work?
Dollar General.
how long did you work at bollar General?
About a year and a couple of months.
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
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Q. Okay. After that, where.did you go?-

A. I went to Foéd Lion.

Q. How.long were yod at Food Lioh?

A. About a\year.

Q. And what position did you have there?

A. 'Manager.

Q.v And_theﬁ after that, where‘did yoﬁ go to work?
A I went to Pepsi.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
(803) 358-0515
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Q. Okay. When did you start working with Pepsi?
A. I think it was around,Alike, June.
Q. Of -- of what yeag?
A. 2013, £ believe.
And'what job did you have at Pepsi?
Starting dff?
. Yes, sir.
A merchandiser.
Q. And tell me about what a meichéndisér doesh
A. A merchandiser Qaits fof/th; boat truck to deliver
the merchandise and checks it ih; then\the méfchandiéer
beginé'breakiné dan the pallets and putting it oﬁ the
shelves. | i. |
Q. Okay. Does it require a lot of lifting?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Does it require a lot of bending?
A. Yes, sir.

17



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 -

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

18

Okay. Prior to April of 2014, did‘you ever have
any problems physica;ly performing your job duties as‘a
merchandiser? ’

No, sir.

Okay. Now, you've heard back-and-forth here
opening statements from both parties, what I want to
talk to you about is what hapbened in the Ewo (2) weeks

leading up to May the 9th, okay? Tell me about that

time period. Had you worked an extended -- an extended

~ longer than normal shift or days on?

Mr. Smith: Objection, leading.
Just --
.Mr. Smith: And, Your Honor, I think if
-— if we’re sticking to the May 9th date of
acciden;,.and since we're limited on time,
I'm not sure what the thirteen (13) days
prior to May 9th -- unless he is alleging an
- injury before Méy 9th -- has to do with -
anything. I just want to make sure I get my
cross out.
Commissioner Wilkerson: I’m going to
give you time; we're going to finish today.
Mr. Smith: Okay.
Commissioner Wilkerson: It’s just, I
told you all twenty (20) minutes ago you all
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
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don’t need to tell me this three (3)'time$

but you all both were -- had to tell it over,-

and over, and over again. I told you we were

out of here at 11:30; you all burned the
fifteen (15) minutes; I didn't."We’re éoing
to finish today -- L

Mr. Smith: I'm sorry.

Commissiongr Wilkerson:- -- but it miéht
be four o’clock this afternoon but --

Mr. Smith: Sorry.

Commissioner'Wiikersoni " -=- you all had
to get it off your chést, so. He can ask the
question, so.

‘Mr. Bacon: I'm sorry,'Your‘Hpnor, i o
feel that since we‘have,thevburden to prove
I've got to bresent'theAfacts..

Commissioner Wilkerson: I agree.
That’s why -- yes. I mean;‘wé’re.goinglto
finish today -- 7

Mr.-Bacon:‘ Okay.

- Commissioner W;lkerson: --‘it just
might be four o’clock this afterndoﬁ.

Mr. Bacon: I just -- I feel like I've
got to --

' Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes, gb ahead.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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Mr. Bacon: -- give you sufficient
information to make your decision on.
Had you worked several weeks prior to -- or
continuously{ several wéeks.prior to May the 9th?
Yes; sir; 1 believe.
Okay. And during that period of time did you
develop low back paih?
Xés, sif.
Mr., Smith: Ogjecfion, leading.
Mr. Bacon: Okay.
Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes. Just get
him to tel; me wha; he did.
Mr. Bacon: All right.
~Now, I want to talk about the -- those two (2)
weeks. Expléin to me during thbSe two (2) weeks what
occurred as far as yod believe up to.May the 6th.
Up to May 6th? Well, in the beginning I was going

as a sales rep in the week prior. I was 'a sales rep; I

worked every day straight, the long hours trying to

inérease saleé like I’'ve always done. And then --
And éhysically what were you doing during that
time?
-- the same thing as a merchandiser.
And during that time period did you develop low
back pain?
) 7
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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Yes, sir.

Okay. Explain to me how that happened and what

you noticed as far as your low back.

I -- you know, the course of the time I was
working cohsecutively I started feeling pain in my
lower back; then I had two (2) days off;

What did you do during those two (2) days?

Not much at all.

All right. And would that have been May 7th and
May 8th? |

I believe so; yes, sir.

Okay. And then, on the morniﬁg of May the 9th,
walk me through that; tell me what happened. .

The morning of May 9th I shéwed up at the Walmart
probably.about 5:30 in the mo;ning, close to 6:00 in
tﬁe morning,'started working the  truck, found out I had

to change a display out and then, finally, I went to go

- fill up the water and that’s when I just called it

quits; I cou;dn’t do it noAmoré and_I reported it to my
supervisor that I just couldn’t continue the day.

All right. Now, tell me about what you’re talking
about, specifically with the water; is that a case of
Aquafina?

Yes,‘sir.

Okay; And what Qas it about that that led you to
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say I can’t do it anymore?

When I picked it up I just -—- the pain w?s too
bad; I just couldn’t.céntinue the route.

And at that point did you call your supervisor?

Yes, sir.

Who was your supervisor?

Eric Smith and Landon Papay.

What did yod tell them?

That I was -- you know, I just needed to go home
at that time and because I just ——'with the pain in my
back I couldn't.continue on. And then, Landon
instructed>me that I had to call JOB HURT,“
1-800-JOB—-HURT. ' '

Did you do that?

Yes, sir.

'Okay. And what did you tell 1-800-JOB-HURT when
you called them?

That I hurt.my back thle I was at work; 1
couldn’t give thém a specific incideﬁt.

Okay. NoQ, after that did théy instruct you to go
to Doctor’s Care?

Yes, sir.

Okay. What did_Docﬁof's Care do for YOu?

They just -- I believe they -- I believe they just
did‘a X-ray on my -- on my back.
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" Okay. Did they recommend an MRI for you?

I don’t remembgr.

Okay. If the records show you had an MRI done on

May 27th of 2014, would you have any reason to dispute

that?

No, sir.

Okay. And after that, was it Doctor’s Care that

referred you to Dr. Strohmeyer?

out

Yes, sir.
Okay. What did Dr. Strohmeyer do for you?
Dr. Strohmeyer pretty much assessed me, had me go

for a/MRi to confirm that I actually had a -~ YOU

_know, an issue going on with my back. And'theh he --

he didn’t want to do surgery in the beginning; he’d

rather do the physical. therapy and the injections,

which I did.-

Did the injections help?
They helped for a short period of time.

It looks like Dr. Batson did a series of three (3)

injections; is that correct?

for

Yes, sir.
‘With the last one being done October 30th of 20147
Yes, sir.

Okay. And after that, did the symptoms resolve

a period of time?

/
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Yes, sir.
Okay. Did your symptoms then re-occur or come
[

back?

The only symptom that came back was the pain down

-my left leg.

Okay. Explain that for me. Did the -- explain
what you'mean by came back there.

When I had the injecﬁions, you know, all the pain
in my back went away but the nerve problem I was having
down my left leg camé back‘--

Okay. |

-- after the injections wore off.

Was there anything that ybu did working at Walmért
that caused an -- caused that pain to fe-occur?

No, sir.

Okay. Did Dr. S;rohmeyer then recommend surge;y_
for you? | | | |

‘Yes, sir.

And was ﬁhat done April 2nd of 20157

Yes, sir.

Okay. How did you do after the surgery?

I was -- felt a lot better.

And did he recommend some additioﬁal treatment and
physical therapy for you after the surgery? -

fes, sir.
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Okay. And did that help you progress?
Yes, sir. | '
Okay. Did he then release you to return to work
Yes, sir.
' Okay. And since that time have you worked
continuously for Walméit?
Yes, sir.
Okayf Are you having any probléms now with your
low back?
No, sir.
Do you have any problems with the pain going down
your left leg? |
No, sir.
Okay. So, all of that was corrected by the
surgery?
Yes, sir.
\Okay. Now, I want to show you a medical record
that is in fhe Qefendant's APA.-
Mr. Bacon: Commissioner, this is page
169 through 172. |
Kevin, I know this is hard to read but this a
Beaufort Memorial record dated November 8 of 2008; does
that look like the date on the top of page 1717
Yes, sir.
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Okay. And this record indicates'that you
presented to Beaufort Memorial with complaints of low
I

back pain while lifting in your job:at Golden Corral;

is that what the medical record says?
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Mr. Smith: Objection, Your Honor. 'I

don‘t believe that’s what the medical --

Nl

Commissioner Wilkerson: I can’'t read
it.

Witness: Yeah, I can’t.

Commissioner Wilkerson: So, I don’t
know what evidence I'm going to producg on
it. I can read --

Mr. Smith: Wéll,\if_-- it’s actually 6n
page 171‘is where it indicates it -- ‘

éoﬁmissioner,Wilkerson: I can’t read
it. | |

Mr. Smith: -- it’'s --~

Commi.ssioner Wilker;bn: I can’t read
that.

Mr. Bacon: Well, can —- other than --

. CommisSioner Wilkerson: 1I’ve got to
have a finding if we’re>looking at it. I -
I can.read that. I can’t read it. f can’t
read it. Mr. Smith, I caﬁ-not read it.

Mr. Smith: Okay. I’'m sorry, Your
. PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: What is it that’

you don’t understand? I can’t read it.

Mr. Smith: I know it’s a blurred
interpretation.

COmmissi;ner Wilkerson: So, I get to
interpret.what I want it to say? I don’t
know. If you don’t give me good copies I
can’t read it.

Mr. Bacon: All right.

Mr. Smith: Let me see.

Commissioner Wilkerspn: Please note for

the record, page 171 is unreadable; I can’t

read it, I'm not interpreting it. I don’t

" have a good copy, without a good copy it'’s
N

just like being a blank page; let that be
noted for the record.
Mr. Bacon: All right. Commissioner --

Commissioner Wilkerson: If you don’t --

Mr. Bacon: -~ I'll withdraw my
question.
Commissioner Wilkerson: =—- if you don’t

provide me good information, either side, if

-

I can’t read it --

Mr. Smith: How about -- how about this
N .
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one?
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- I mean, I —-
I mean --

Mr. Smith: Your Honor,'maybe this is a.

better copy here.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- I don’t _,
know.

Mr. Smith: This is ffom our prior APA
submissions.

Commissioner Wilkerson: “This eighteen
(18) year old Caucasian male presents to the
emergency room with complaints of pain to his

low back.” I can read this one. This is

page 68.

Mr. Smith: Yes, Your Honor, and I'm
sorxry, tha; was in our priof APAs and so can
we --

. Commissioner Wilkerson: “Patient states
he was lifting something heavy and hadbtaken
it to the roof of Golden Corral where he
worked as a manager.” I can read 68.

Mr. Smith: -- okay. Could we replace
that with 1717

Commissioner Wilkerson:» Do you agree

that 68 is 1717
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Mr. Bacon: i think that’s —-
Cémmissionér Wilkerson: Okay.
Mr. Smith: 171, can we replace that?
Thank you.
{

Commissioner Wilkerson: Page 171, okay.

And, Kevin, that -- that’s a 2008 -- November of

2008 medical record from when you went to Beaufort

Memorial Hospital; is that what the records reflect?
Yeah, that’s what the records reflect.
Okay. After Novembér 8th of 2008, did you seek
any additional meqical treatment for your low back?
No, s;r. , |
Okay. Did you havé any ongoing problems with ydur
low back between thenvandrlate April/early May of 20147
'NB, sir. |
'Dia you.miss any fimevfrom Golden Corral orifile a
Workers',Compensatioh claim at Goiden Corral for this
incident? 4
Not that I remember.
Okay. Did this resolve without issue?
Yes,.sir. I geiieve so, it did. .
Okay. All right, Kevin, those are all the
questions that I have. Please answer any tﬁat Mr.
Smith may have.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Please.
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Mr. Smith: Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr. Smith:

0.

On May 9th, 2014, you called the 1-800-JOB-HURT
operator, as you stated during direct examination,
correct?

Say that one more time, sir.

On May 9th, 2014, you called the 1-800~JOB-HURT

operator after you spoke with Landon Papay; is that

1 . -

.correct?

I had spoke with Eric Smith too but, yes, sir.
Okay. And then, how‘did you tell the operator
that you injured yourself on the date of your accident,

which you ére élleging today, on May 9th, 20142

Whatfs in the transcript; I can’t recall every
word I did.

Did you have a chance to read over your statement
or listen to the statement.that I pfovided to your-
attorney?

‘A thle ago; yes, sir.

Okay. Would it be fair to say that you told the
operator fhat you could not recall how you injured
yourself on May 2nd, 2014, at a Publix?

If that’s whﬁt's in the record;.yes, sir.

Okay. And would it be glso fair to say that you'
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~

told the 1-800-JOB-HURT operator thét you -thought you

hurt yourself in the black -- in the backroom at the

. Publix on Hilton Head at eleven o'clock?

If that’s in the record; yes, sir.

Okay. Are you aware =-- that’s store 700, is it
nof?

I'm not --

Oh.

-- I don’t remember the store numbers anymoré.

Okay. But are you Aware that that Publix video
from 10:45 until 11:25, that I provided your counsel,
does not show youranywhere in the backroom on May 2nd,
2014, at the Publix?

No, sir. I didn’t ever see a video about that.

Okay.. So, youahévépft seen the'videé?

~ (Shook head in a side-to-side motion)..
| Okay. Okay. fMoving.—- we’ll gd on to the --

moving away from the JOB-HURT call. On May 12th —-
after you éalled JOB-HURT on May 9th, on May 12th you.
spoke with Mark Drutch -- Mark -- I'm sorry --VDrgfch,
the Adjustor with the insurance company;'is that
correct?

I don’t recall speaking.to a Mark but if that’s
what had happened, |

Okay. Do you -- and I’'ll show you APA, page 211.
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If —— I'1ll give a chance and tell me after you ge;
finished reading that.
Okay.
Is it faif to say you told him that you could not
recall a specific event that occurred on May 2nd, 20142
Yes, sir. | !
And is it fair to say yoﬁ-also told him you. had
never. had any prior back injuries?

" Yes, sir. As much as I could recall I couldn’t
remember ever having any back == actual back injuries.
‘ Okay. And is it fair to say théfe isn’t any
mention of a May 2nd, 2014, date of éccident when you

spoke with the Adjustor or a May'9£h, 2014, daﬁe of
accident when you.spoke with the Aaiustor? '
I don’t see if there. | ,

Okay.

Except  for when it said something about --

Are -- |

-— May 9th when I called. N

-- oh, okay. Are you awaré on July 11th, 2014,
that your attorney initial ——‘initially filed a Form 50
alleging you injured yourself on May 12th, 2014,lwhile
pulling a pallet of products; are you aware of that?

If that’s what the documentation is; yes, sir.

It’s -—— I can --

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
~www.PalmettoCourtReporting.com

32



10
11

12

13-

14

15

le

17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

33

Mr. Bacon: What page?
-— okay. Are you claiﬁing that 'you injured
yourself on May 12th, 20142
- I don't recall exactly what-date.
You don’t recall exactly what date you injured
yourself? | '
No, sir. .
Okay. Now, on May 9th -- I'm sbrry. On September
5§h, 2014, I conducted your deposition for the first
time and during the course of the deposition do you
i .
recall alleging injuring yourself on May 6th, 20142
If that's what’s in the transcript then, yes. But
I remember in the beginning we clarified that the dates
were not all accurate. . T
Okay. I ‘can present you with your deposition --
'Un-huh. |
-- deposition testimony. Would you or would you
not agree that on May 6th, 2014, you told me that you
injured your back while working at a Walmart on May
Gﬁh, 20147 |
If it’s in my deposition; yes, sir.
So, do you agree: you testifiedbfor that?
Yés, sir; if it’s in my deposition.

Okay.

Mr. Smith: And that’s a page 30 of his
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deposition, Your Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t have

his deposition.

Mr. Smith: May I introduce it into the

record?
Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes. But I

don’t have it.

. Court Reporter: You’ll need to give it

to me so I can mark it.

Mr. Smith: Okay, Madame Court Reporter.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Are there two

(2) of them? Are we going to do both of
' them?
Mr. Smith: Yes, Your Honor, if you
don’t mind.
Commissioner Wilkerson: Sure. No.
Absolutely.

Court Reporter: Defendant’s One and

Two.
Mr. Smith: Yes. Thank you.
Commissioner Wilkerson: We’re going to
do the one -- he is referencing the first

deposition taken on September 5th will be

D-1, and then the second one was taken when?

(DEFENDANT’S EXHIBIT NUMBER ONE WAS MARKED FOR
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IDENTIFICATION)
Mr. Bacon: October 26 of 2015,
Commissioner.
Commissioner Wiikerson: Oka&. 2015,
okay. And that will be D-2.
' (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER TWO ﬁAS MARKED FOR

IDENTIFICATION)

Commissioner Wilkerson: Page 30. Okay.
~
Thank you.
During your deposition you did not -- let me ask

you this. -- to the 1-800-JOB-HURT operator.you didn’t
mentioﬁ that you injured yourself on May 6, 2014; is

that correct?

~

If that’s from the reéording} yes) sir.

Well, ‘you read the recording, did you not --
Yes, sir; a while ago.
-- okay. That’s not in the recording, is it?

If it’s not --

-

I mean --
-=- I don't --

-— either it is or it isn’t; can you recall?

]

- —— I can’t recall. .
‘ 3

Okay. Did -- also, you didn’t allege during your
deposition, as you alleged to Mark Drutch on May 12th,
2014, that you injured yourself on May 2nd, 2014,
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during your deposition, did you?

During the deposition where Mark -- I don’t
rgcall. -

No, sir. You reported 1-800-JOB-HURT, as well as
to Mark Drutch, that you had injured yourself on May
2nd, 2014, by working at a Publix, correct?

If thaﬁ's whaﬁ ;he transcript séys.

Okay. But did you read the 1-800-JOB-HURT call?

A wh%le ago; yes, sir.

 Okay. Did it say in there ‘that you told the --

I don't recall.

-- how long ago did you read it?

Probably about -- I think the last time I read it.
was in October.

| That was'righﬁ 5efore I took your deposition?

Yes, sir. |

And after I took your deposition, marked Defense
Exhibit Numbervao, you read your entire deposition
transcript Before I téok your second deposition,
correct?

Yes, sir. .

And at the end of that deposition I asked you if
you read your first deposition; is that correct?

Yes, sir.

And, I asked you, specifically, if everything you
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stated in your first depositipn was Erue and accnrate
and to the best 6f ydur recollection, and you --

Yes, sir; I did.

-~ and you rea:firned it in your senond>
deposition, correct?

Yes, sir.

All right. Now, during your deposition you also -

‘claimed a second injury on May 9th, 2014 --

Mr. Smith: -- and, Your.Honor,anis is
on page‘35 through‘37 of the dépositinn -
-- while lifting gicase of Aqugfinat;;
Cdmnissionér Wilkersén: Which
deposition?
| Mr. Smitnf Lae fhe first depositidn,:
, v i o

Your "Honor. I -apologize —-

-- while lifting a case of Aquafina in the

backroom in the backroom of a Walmart}‘correct?

Yes,‘sir. ‘
~‘-Okay. Again,‘youﬂdidn’ﬁ allege‘tha£ to thé
1-800—JOB-HURr‘operato£,on May Sth, 2014 -¥ 
A That was -- B
-- correct?

-=- no, sir. Because that was the first time I‘ve

ever actually called the_l—BOO—JOB-HURT; I didn't quite

understand what I was supposed to do.
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But you called her on this same day that you’re
alléging you injured yourself today and spoke with her?
Yes.

Okay. So, you’re alleging the injury of May 9th,

2014, and you spoke with the 1-800-JOB-HURT operator on

' May Sth, correct?

Correct.

And you told her you iﬂjured yourself on Méy 2nd,
correct?

Yes. That’; when I started feeling the pain in my
lower back.

Did you mention on Méy 9th, 2014 -- beéause what
you told her on crosé*exém -- make sure I'm not'-- I'm
sorry, during.direct ekam -=- you séid after lifting

this caée of Aquafina and it was too much on your back,

"you felt pain $0 you called your supeﬁvisor. And what

did they tell you to do?

They told me to call 1—860-J03—HURT.

Okay. And how long did‘that take from that
transition from whén you 1ifting that case of Aquafina
till when you called the 1-800-JOB-HURT operator?

Less.than, probably, fifteen (15) minutes.

Okay. So, within -that fifteen (15) minutes when
you called the 1—800—JOE-HURT operator and you injured
yourseif on Méy 9th lifting a case of Aquafiﬁa, did you
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just injured myself in the backroom of a Walmart today?
I'm not sure. Have you got a -- if I could read

it real quick?
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Sure, you can --

If you’ve got it.

-- read your transcription.
If 1 -~

I also —-

-— you know a transcription --

-- have it transcribed.
-- if I didn’t.
What?
I'm not sure. I’ll have to read it.
Mr. Bacon: Is there a specific place
you want to ask him about or just héve him

read the whole thing over again?

Mr. Smith: Well, I —- I didn’t want him

to -- he said that he really doesn’t remember

the recording; so, I don’t know if he should

read its entirety or -- from based on
deponent's‘statement I think he probably
should. 1It’s six (6) pages on my

transcription.

Mr. Bacon: Ask him what you want; there
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is some follow up phat can clarify it.

Mr. Smith: 1I'm not -- at this point I'm
in a rut because I need to know within that
Eifteen (15) ﬁinute timeframe did he report -
to the 1-éOOrJOB—HURT operator the same day
he is alleging his date of.aécident is May
9th and he called the JOB-HURT operator on
May 9th, did you say I lifted a case of
Aquéfina at the Walmart.

| Commiésioner Wilkerson: Let ﬁe ask a
question while he is reading it. " Is there
any documentation in. the recorded statement
of what day it wés taken?

‘ ~Mr. Bacon: I think it’s stipulated to.
its May the 9th.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. Begause
I -- there’s nothiqg in hefe.

_ ‘

Mr. Bacon: Right.

Commissioner Wilkerson: It doesn’t say
anything in here.

Mr. Bacon: It --

.Commissioner Wilkerson: Are you
stipulating?

Mr. Smith: Yes.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. ’
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Mr. Smith: And I - I ~- I believe when
you listen to the recordiné, Your Honor, it
will say that --

!

Commissionei Wilkerson: I don’t ha&e
the recording.

Mr. Smith: -- oh, I forgot to hand
those up to you; 1 apologize.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I’'m not sure
why I need to listen to the recording if it’s
verbatim.

| Mr. Smith: I -- did you not want these
three (3) recérds I have of it?

‘Commissioner Wilkerson: ©Oh, I don’t
know. . I just -- it’s whatever you want to

Mr. Smith: I didn’t know what Your
Hondr’s preferences were, rather reading or
listening it to yourself; so, I -- I brought
a copy.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I usually read

them because =--

Mr. Smith: And that -- the Publix is
just showing he wasn’t in the backroom when
he allegedly ——/he wasn’t there when he
calléd/the 1;800-JOB7HURT operator on May’
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2nd. And the second'recording is just the
1-800-J0OB-HURT call while he’s speaking with
the operator.

So, Mr. Wikel, my question to you is, after now
reading the transcript, did you on May 9th, when you
alleéedly injured yourself lifting a case-of Aquafina,
do you ever mention that to the JOB-HURT operator

saying that -- that you had the call; do you see it

-anywhere in the transcription?

No, sir. I don’'t see it anywhere in the
transcription.

Okay. And you also told her you were at a Publix
and you weren’t at a Walmart?

When I got -- I started feeling the back _pain was
at a Publix --
Okay. But -
-- that’s what I £old'her.
- whgn -- so, fifteen (15) minutes transpired
between you lifting that case of Aquafina in the back
in the -- at Walmart and when you called the
1-800-JOB-HURT operator, correct?

Yes, sir.

Okay. And you told the JOB-HURT operator that you
injured yourself at a Publix on May 2nd; isn’t that

correct?
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Mr. Bacon: Can you point him to a
specific line?
Mr. Smith: I don’t want to direct him.
Now, he can review the entire transcript.
Cgmmissioner Wilkerson: I tell ydu
what; let’s take the next case. 1If yoh all
needed to all this reading you needed to do
it way Béfore now. So, we're going to stop;
we're way past time. If we’fe going -- I'nm
not taking time at a hearing‘for people to
read stuff. I'll get you back in here where
we can. Thank you all.
Mr. Smith: Thank you, Your Honor.
(0ff The Record at 11:43 A.M.)
(On The Record at 11:55 A.M.)
Commissioner.Wilkersén: All right. Are
you ready?
Mr.‘Bacon: I'm sorry. I was trying to
gef everything out quickly.
‘Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.
‘All right, please.
Mr. Smith: Thank you, Your Honor.
N v CROSS-EXAMINATION {RESUMED)
By Mr. Smith:
Q. I believe, Mr. Wikel,.when we went off the recd:d
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we’d ~- we had established that you had called the

1-800-JOB-HURT operator on May %th, 2014, correct?

Yes, s

ir.

And you told your attorney during direct

44

examination that you injured yourself on May 9th, 2014,

while lifting a case of Aquéfina in the back of a

Walmart; is

Yes, s

that correct?

ir. |

Have you had a chance to review the transcript

from the 1-

800-JOB-HURT call to refresh your

recollection?

Yes, s

ir.

Okay. Did you ever mention to the '1-800-JOB-HURT

operator that you injured yourself on May 9th, 20147

Yes, s
You in

When I

ir. ©0n line 8.
jured yourself on May 9th,'2014?

called.

Commissioner Wilkerson: What page? He

said page -- did he say a page?

Mr. Smith: 'He said -- I think he said

page 9. What --

Witness: Page'S;

~ Commissioner Wilkerson: Page 5.

- sorry, page what?

7

Witness: Page 5.
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Commissioner Wilkerson: 5, yes, sir.
Page 5, line 9, is all I heard.
Witness: Line 8.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Line 8, I'm

sorry.
- witness: Do -- do you want me to read
‘ that or --
Mr. Smith: -- can we work off of the

same transcription or do you have an extra
copy, Tom?
Mf. Bacon: I do not. 'Thé Commissioner
has the oriéinal and that’s the only copy I
have.
Commissioner Wilkerson: So, hold on.
So, we've got —- I'm going to giVe‘you page
5, line‘8. And it says, Answer: I worked a
couple of hours today and t§ld them I wasn’t
going to be‘able to do it. My back was
killing me too bad and they told me i had to
call y’all, so. That’s through line 10.
Mr. Smifh: Ch, okay.
So, is it your position today that you told her
that you injured yourself on May 9th, 2014?
Well, I -- I reported that I was hurt on May 9.
Did ydu not relate it back to May 2nd, 2014, when
PALMET&O COURT REPORTING
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!

you spoke with the’JOB—HURT operator?

Yes.

Okay.

Because that’s when --

Did you mention that you hurt yourself with a --
at a Walmart or at a Publix?.

-~ I said, I believe a Publix.

~ Okay. And did you mention anything about’ a case
of Aquafina?

No, sir.

Okay. And you told her you couldn’t exactly
recall how you injured yourself on May Zﬁd, 2014,
correct?

No, sir. That’s just when it stafted hurting.

Could you give her a specific time or event that
occurred on May 2nd, 20142 |

No, sir. Even with the timeframe at éleven
o’clock I said I -~ I.said I might -- might be -- or I
believe.

Okay.- So, you workéd May 6tﬂ, 2014, and as your
attorney established you -- which is a Tuesday and you‘
were off that Wednesday and Thursday, correct, before.
May 9th, "2014?

Yes, sir.

Okay. And during your recorded statement you told
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.(13) days in a row, correct?

~ N

the 1-800-JOB-HURT operator that you worked thirteen

i

Yes, sir.

But that’s not entirely accurate because you had

the Tuesday -- I'm sorry, the Wednesday and the

.Thursday off, correct?

Before thét time,'yés -—

Okay.

——‘1 did work thirteen (13) days straight.

And you %— on May.9£h, 2014, after Landon told you
to”éall 1;800—JOB-HURT they referred you out to
Doctorfsxéare the same day,fcqrrect?:

'Yes,"sir.

And on -- did you tell .the ﬁhysician at Doctor’s
Care that;yod injured’youfself while lifting a case of
Aquafina on May 9th, that same day, 20142
£ don’; recall off the top of my head;

Qkay. -

I’M_hoﬁ -

" Could you turn to pagé 183 of the APAfsubmissions?
Let me provide you with them. .

-- you said 1837

_Yes. And just tell me if -- after you’ve had the

chance to review it so -- to refresh your recollection.

No, it doesn’t mention a Aquafina case.
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Okay. But you went to the doctor May 9th, 2014,
the same day you a;legedly injured yourself; as.you
stated today, correct?

Yes, sir.

And you didn’t mention that you injured yourself
on May 9th, 2014, at least according to the Doctor’s
Care note, correct?

I -- no, sir. It shows that I showed up with
lower back pain one (1) week after a long shift.

And could you provide any specific date or -- or
accident time to him according to the note?

I don’'t see whefe it -- it was put down like that;
no, sir.

Okay. It just said &ou had just been working long
shifts at work?

Yes, sir.

‘Okay. Now, we didn’t send/you to Dr. Strohmeyer,
a§ you established before; Doctor’s care sént you to
Dr. Strohmeyer, correct?

I believe so; yes, sir.

It was a aenied claim. Do you ever remember
anybody at PepsiCo, your employer, say go to Dr.
Strohmeyer?

I can't recall that. I remember someone appointed
me to go to Dr. Strohmeyer.
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Did you not testify during direct that it was
Doctor’s Care that recommended you to go to --

I believe it was Doctor’s_Cere -

-- okay}
-- because they’re the only ones i seen before I>
went to Strohmeyer.

Okay. I would like you to look at APA, 198, page
198, which is an accideﬁt questionnaire from Dr.
Strohmeyer. |

| Okay.

Is that your signature at the bottom?

Yes, sir.
Ckay. And --
I —

—- is there --
-- I can’t really read it.

-- or is there not a section on the form that you

" could have indicated whether it was work related or

not?

They told me not to -- because I --.it wasn’'t
actually through Workman’s Comp case yet; they told me
not to. “

Okay. So, you indicated you did not have a work
related injury on that form? |

Yes{ because they toid me don’t fill it out that
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Okay. But you knew that was going to be submitted

to Blue Cross/Blue Shield.

Because at that time I was already denied.

Okay. But you never mentioned to Blue Cross/Blue

Shield that you -- that it was pending a Workers'

Compensétion claim or they may have a lien or might be

entitled to recoupment of benefits; you filed this ’

under your health insurance saying no.accident,

correct? .
Yes. But that was because I was already
instructed by Pepsi-Cola through the -- that I wasn’t

-- I was already denied for my claim.

So, why didn’t you tell Blue Cross/Blue Shield I

was denied for a claim but I need to go forward with

the -- instead of just saying no accident?

Because that’s how the office instructed me to do

it?

Do you realize that’s defrauding the insurance.

company?

Mr. Bacon: Objection.
Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes.. How =--
Mr. Bacon: That’s asking for a iegal
concluéion. |
QOmﬁissipner Wilkerson: -- yes.
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Commissioner Wilkerson: If Pepsi-Cola

told him to do it. -

51

Mr. Smith: No. He’s saying the office

staff did it; that’s what he is referring to.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Pepsi-Cola's
office staff or the officévstaff --

Witness: No.

Mr. Smith: Dr. Stréﬁmeyer’s office --

Witness: Dr. Strohmeyer --

Mr. Smith: -- Your Honor.
Witness: -- because he said to --
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- oh, I'm

sorry. I’'m sorry.

Witness: -- yeah.

Commissioner Wilkerson:  That’s -- okay.
Dr.. Strohmeyer -- okay, I'm sorry.

And are you aware of that?
No. . i

Okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I’m sorry about

that. I wrote it down wrong.

And during your deposition you testified under

oath that you never saw a medical care provider for any

kind of back pain in the past; is that correct?
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. That I could recall; yes, sir.

Okay. But now I’'ve already submitted the Beaufort -

Memorial Hospital record with that -- your attorney has

already gdne,over on Novemberl8th, 2008, where you were

having sharp, shooting pains down your left leg and

lower back for two (2) weeks, correct?

If that’s what’s on the documentation, yeah.

Did you review the medical record when he showed

it to you?

Yes.

Okay. And those are the exact same symptoms Dr.

{

Strohmeyer was treating you for, correct?

Yes.

Six (6) years later, yes.

And you never told me about that during your

deposition, did you?

I didn’t remember that at all, sir.

Okay. And then, you were also seen at Beaufort

Memorial Hospital on July 21st, 2011 -- and if you’'d

like to refresh your recollection its page 175 of the

APAs -- with a ten (10) out of ten (10) complaint of

severity of lower back pain.

No,

really.

Mr. Bacon: What page?
Mr. Smith: 175.

I can -- the one I've got I can’t even read,

-~
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Mr. Bacon: And where does it say low
back pain?

Mr. Smith: It says low back pain --
he's got my copy; I’'ve got it highlighted

there.

It's -- it just says severe.

Severe ten (10) out of ten (10). And then at the
btop -- the top of'it here it says presents today --
here -- it says mid-back at the end af the first
sentéﬁce?

Uh-huh.

Do you. agree with that?

Yes, sir. That’s mid-back thoﬁgh.

Okay. And -- but I asked you had you ever geen
treatedvfor aﬂy symptoms with‘your backio; seen a
medical caré provider in your deposition, correct?

r Yes, sir. But I didn’'t recall these two .(2).

Okay. Did you have -- ever have a conversation
with Landon Papay two (2) weeks prior to your alleged
date of accident on May 9th; 2014, in whiéh you told
him you had been treated by a doctor in the past and
you knew you had two (2) slipped disks in your back?

No, sir. Like I to}d you before, I wasn’t able to
recall that conversation.

So, you don’'t recall whether or not you had it or
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not?
Yes, gir.
Okay. And you like Landon Papay, correct?
Yes. He was a all right manager for me.
You don't knoonf any reason why he’d have to lie?
No, sir. '

Now, the interesting fact is that you saw Doctor’s

Care on May 9th and May 16th of 2014, correct?

If that’s in the docﬁmentation; yes, sir.

And then they placed you oﬁ a ten (10) pound
lifting restriction, correct?

Yes, sir.

Then on May 10th, during those two (2) visits, you

.go and fill out an application at Walmart saying you’re

ready, willing and able to work evening, nights, Monday
through Sunday; isn’t that correct?
I believe so; yes, sir. That shows on the paper.

And during your deposition you also told me that

. you had never injured yourself outside of working for

PepsiCo; isn’t that correct?

Yes, sir. Where I needed to treat -- seek medical
condition -- medical treatment but I didn’t recall
those two (2) thét you presented me.

Okay. éut you did injure yourself while working
at'tﬁe Golden.Corral when you were trying to lift
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something heavy up to the roof?

A. Apparently, sir.

Q. At page 1712

A. Yes, sir --

Q. : Okay. '

A; : -- apparently.

Q. And you didn’t mention that to mé at the

deposition, correct?

A. I didn’t recall that at all, sir.

Q. Now, we -- we talked earlier about the Dollar
General and your -- your employment at the Dollar

General and the Golden Corral, correct?

A. ’ Yes, s;r.

0. . You wére a manager at the Golden Corrai, correct?:

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you would supervise up tq forty (40)
empioyees?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you weré at the -- a managér at the Dollar

~General, a key manager,.corréct?

A. I started as a key managef; yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And you were responsible for people
repqrting work related injuries to you as a manager,
correct? |

A. Not at that level, sir.
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Well, how about at the Golden Corral?

No, sir.

Okay. éo -- but you did work at the Dol;ar
General, as we_establishea, and did -- why did you
1eave.the Dollar Geﬁeral?

| I left Dollar General because I was being wrongly
accused of a incident. |

Okay. Didn’t you tell me during the course of
your deposition ghat you left the Dollar General after
the investigation? -

Yes, sir.

Okay. Are you aware at pagé 200 that the record
from the Dollar General indicates in the check mark
thét you left after the investigation began and was
ongoing?

‘Commissioner Wilkerson: I can’t read
that.

Mr. Smith: See that .check mark rigbt
there? \

,CommissionerAWilkerson:‘ No. Well, I
don’t know what all this is.

Mr. Smith: 1It’s --

Commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t -- page
200 is unreadable. I can’ﬁ read that; I
don’t know what that is;
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Mf. Smith: -- Your Honor, I was just
asking if 'you’d look at this entry right
there (indicating) there is a check mark.

Commissioner Wilkerson: There is a
check where it says resigned during
investigation by a Deborah Turner. There is
no signature by anybody on that page. It
says personnel action -- I don’t know Qhat --
it says Dollar General at the ﬁop; I -- 1 can
read nothing on the left hand side.

Mr. Smith: Thank you, Your Honor.

And so, would you agree that you left during the
investiéation or not? |

My understanding that~I was cleared and they put
me -- because I was on suspension without.pay;‘they
told me to go on suspehsion without pay.

And then, you haven’t worked for PepsiCo since

s

June of 2014,. correct?

Yes, sir.
And then, in November of 2014, you told Dr.

Strohmeyer you’re a hundred percent (100%) better,

-correct?

For my pain in my back was gone; yes,'sir.
Okay. And then, the only personAyou've worked for
since you went -- returned back to Dr. Strohmeyer in
i PALMETTC COURT REPORTING
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February 23rd, 2015, was Walmart?

Yes,

By Mr. Bacon:

Q.

sir.
Mr. Smith: ‘I have no further questions,
Your Honor.
.Commissioner Wilkerson: Anythi;g on
redirect?
Mr, Smith: "I qut have one (1) witneés
to call. | ‘
Commissioner Wilkerson: One (1) what?
Mr. Smith: I just have one (1) witness

to call.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Mr. Wikel, the 1-800-JOB-HURT transcript that was

presented,

when you called that 1-800-JOB-HURT that was

what you were instructed to do, correct?

Yes.
Okay.
them that
Yes.

Okay.

And so, at that point you were notifying

you had injured your back?

And I think your testimony earlier was that

you told them that it started around May the 2nd; is

that accurate?

Yes.

Okay.

And on May the 2nd were you working at  a
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Publix?-

Yes.

Okay.

I believe so.

And so} that’s

Yes.

To the best of
began?

Yes, sir.

Okay. And so,
did indicate to the
morning and weren’t
due toipain? |

Yes, sir.

Okay. And so,

Yes, sir.

59

when the back pain started to you?

/ -
your knowledge, that’s when it

in that'ljﬁoo—JOB—HURT, though, you
lady that you were working that

able to complete your job duties

at that point -- after that, you

~were referred to Doctor’s Care?

Okay. And then, Doctor’s Care is who referred you

to Dr. Strohmeyer?

Yes, sir.

Okay. Now, are you-here today asking the

Commissioner to find your May 9th, 2014 job injury

compensable or covered under Workers’ Compensation?

Yes, sir.

Okay. And the

treatment that you have received,
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including surgery with Dr. Strohmeyer?

Yes, éir.

And the injections with Dr. Batson?

Yes, sir.

And the physical therapy that you received?

Yes, sir.

Okay. And you -- I think we covered it earlier,.
but the dates that you were out of work due to the
injury were April 2nd, the date of your surgery --

Mr. Smith: Your Honor, objection.
Outside the scope 6f cross; I didn’t open the
door for that. |

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. Well,
you can just tell me at the end because I
doﬁ’t Qnow what days TTD --

Mr. Bacon: Okéy.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- is
available, yes. I’1ll let him do that at the
end. |

Mr. Bacon: Okay. All right, Kevin,
those are all the quesﬁions I have. Please
answer any additional that Mr. Smith or-the '
Commissioner may have.

Mr. Smith: Okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Mr. Smith.
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RECROSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr. Smith:

0.

>

P o p oo

Your attorney ihdicated that you told the operator
that you had some pain on May 2nd and you also had some
pain on May 9th?

I didn't say the exact date but that was the day I

called was on May 9th.

Didn’t you say you had pain that Aay for, like,
two (2) hours --

Yeah, I —-

-- from what you>said earlier?

-- it shows tha; I had pain.

Is that what you told her?

In the -- on line 8 it says, I worked a couple of
hours today and told them I wasn’t going to be -- going
to be able to do it; my baék was kiliing me too bad.

Okay. And doesn't'it -- didn’t you also tell the
1-800-JOB-HURT operator that your back had been killing
you for ihe last thirteen (13) days? . A

1 don;t -~ I said I believe it’'s been killing me
fqr a little while.

‘So, we’re not just looking at Ma& 2nd, May 9th;
we’re looking at thirteen (13) days. So, are you
alleging you —- you injured yourself over thirteen (135
days or on a specific date?
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I don‘t -- it transpired over the time I was
working. There was no -- I can’t remember exactly what
day, what item exact;y hﬁrt me --

So, you cannot recall --

-- but I remember on May 9th when I picked up é
Aquafina -- a pack of Aquafina Nice-and .that’s when I
gave in --

-~ do you'think that was the mechanism ~-

-- I couldn’t deal with the pain.
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mechanism of injury or do you think it was

for the thirteen (13) days prior due to

repetitive lifting?

It was probably through the whole time.

Probably due to repetitive lifting?-

Yes.

"Mr. Smith: I have no further,*iour
Honor. /

Mr. Bacon: Nothing, Commissioner,
unless you have]any questions for Mr. Wikel.

Commissioner Wilkefson: I don’t think
so. 'You may be excused.

Mr. Wikel: All right. . Thank you, sir.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Thank you. s
the person you’re calling, is he --

Mr. Sﬁith: ‘I.have him sequestered,.Your
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Honor. He's in the --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- what =--
Mr. Smith: -- he’s Mr. Landon Papay.
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- okay._ And

. what is he going to testify to?’

Mr. Smith: He’s going to testify tﬁat
Kevin had told him that he had prior two (2)
slipped disks on May 2nd.

Mr. Bacon: Which I’'m not sure what the
medical basis for this is going to be; so,
this will be entered as --

Mr. Smith: Well, obviously, his
credibility is at issue. He has alleged --

Mr. Bacon; Kevin, you can si; -- sit
right there. i

Mr. Smith: =-- May 6th, May 9th.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Smith: And on two (2) other --
fgree (3) 6ther occasions he said --

Commissioner Wilkerson: How long do you
think this‘witness will take?

Mr. Smith: -- less than three (3)
minutes.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. I’il
give you all ten (iO), a tqtal of ten (10)L
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Go ahead.
(OfE The.Record)

Mr. Smith: Your Honor, this is Mr.
Landon Papay. If you could, pleasé, sit ovér
there by the microphone.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Mr. Papay, if
you’ll have a seat here and spell your last
name for the Court Reporter --

Courtheporter: Thank you.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- she will
need that once we get you started;

Mr. Papay: Okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Go ahead and

raise your right hand.

Landon Papay, being duly sworn and cautioned to speak

the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,

testified as follows:

By Mr.

Smith:

Court Reporter: Please state and 'spell
your name for the record.

Witﬁess; Landon Papay, P-A-P-A-Y.

Courf Reporter: Thank you.

Witness:. You'’ re welcome.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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\
Q. Could you provide the Court with your current
address, please?
A. Home address?
Q. Yes, sir.
A. 341 Tucker Drive, Charieston, Scuth Carolina,
29414, ; o ' h ‘ o
Q. " And wherelgre you cﬁrfently_employed? ‘
A, Pepsi Beverage Company.
Q. And how long have you been employed there?
A. With —-- almogt fourteen (14) years.
Q. And wha£’s{your current position?
A. Unit sales manager.
Q. Have you ever had a -- a back injﬁry at PepsiCo?
A, I have.
Q. Was it found compensable or nqt?
A. I'm sorry? ! |
Q. Did -- was it denied or accepted?
A. Accepted. ‘ J
Q. \bid'you immediately report it to yourvsupervisor?
A. I did. ‘
. Do you know Kevin'Wikel?
I do. ' S ’ .
. Are you aware that Mr. Wikel has alleged that he's

injured himself on May 9th, 2014, while'lifting a case

of Aquafina at a Walmart --
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I am,

-- at least during oral -- oral arguments by his
attorney?

Yes.

Okay. Did you ever heaf about a work relaﬁed
accident on May 9th, 2014, by Mr. Wikel?

If I remember correctly, he either called myself\
or Eric Smith( his direct supervisor; and stated fhat.
his back -- he could not -- he could no longer work
that day; his back was hurting him too -- at that point

in time too much where he could not work. He -- I

_ believe, it was either Eric -- either Eric Smith or

myéelf that told him at that point in time to call the

1-800-JOB-HURT number, for him to report it and then to

. go to see the doctor.

Okay. And do you know where he was on’May 9th,

20147
I -- I'd have to look at his sheefs and see
exactly what day aﬁd what -- what store he was at.'
Do you recall how or -- he tola you he injured
himself?

I believe he said he was lifting a case ofv
product.
Okay. Did he say on that day or any particular
day or --
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A. He said it was on that -- on that day -- that it

- was that morning, yes.

0. -- ‘lifted something that morning?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. You just’have to answer verbally yes or no.

A. Yes. Sorry.

Q. Okay. Prior to this =-- that'date, did Kevin ever
report to you that he ever had any prior problems with
his back?

A. Yes. Kevin had actually come to me previous to
that because I ;— well, we had talked abouﬁ back issues
before since he knew that I had had back surgery and he
had stated at thaﬁ péint in time that he had a back
injury as -- as well. He had stated that he had two
(2) slipped disks.

Q. . Can we clarify it for the Court’s sake, when did
you have thisvconversation?

A. : Prior to that date, severai weeks before that.

Q. Several wéeks before which date, sir?

A. May 9th.

0. May 9th?

A. Yes.

Q. 6kay.

A. We had -- we were having a conversation outside, I
believe it Qas after one of ou? -— our towﬁ hall
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We were ocutside the facility talking and I

-- he was talking about his back was hurting, and I

asked him at that point in time, did you hurt it here,

and he said that he had not, that he had hurt it at a

previous job and that he had two (2) slipped disks.

'And -- and that -- that was pretty much the -- he -- we

had talked about different techniques on trying to get

it ~-- how to get your back better; make it feel better

when you’re driving in the car and different things

like that.

So, two (2) weeks prior to this date of alleged

accident he was complaining of back pain to you?

At least two' (2) weeks, yes. But I -- I had -—- I

had asked him if he had hurt himself at‘Pepsi because,

: like, one of my first things of doing is to.ensuré my

~employees are safe and if they do have a work related

accident to-call it in immediately. And I had asked

him if he was able to do his job and he said that, yes,

he was; that it wasn’t anything that was prohibiting

him from doing his job.

- Okay.

9th?

So, did he tell you it wasn’t work related

" in the conversation you had two (2) weeks prior to May

Correct. It was not work related.

Okay.

Thank you.
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Mr. Smith: That’s all I have.
Mr. Bacon: I just want to clarify one
thing.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr. Bacon:

N

Q. You indicated that on May 9th, 2014, he called you

that morning and indicated that he was lifting
something that morning and hurt himself; is that your

testimony?

A, He --'I cannot recall exactly but he had reported

in that morning, I know it was early morning because we
had to get someone to cover the -- the remainder of --
.of his route, but he.waS'—- he had said that he had

hurt it that morning.

Q. Okay. And that was May the 9th?
A. Yes. : ‘ ' 3
Q. ‘ Okay.

Mr. Bacon: Those are all the questions
I have. Thaﬁk you.

Mr. Smifh: I have no furthgrbquestions.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Let me ask a
question.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

By Commissioner Wilkerson:

Q. I don’t know that it matters but --
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Yes, sir.

-- would you work with two (2) slipped disks?

I -- I don’t know if.I could, sir. My back injury
was -- was different but I know it was --

BPt your testimony is you’re after fhe employee’s
safety; is that correct?

-- uh-huh.

| So, if an employee tells you they have two (2)

slipped disks you would allow them to continue to Qork?

He said it was not diagnoéed at that point in
time. And I asked him if he --

So, there was no mediéal opinion you had; it’s
just what -- it was not diagnosed as a slipped'Aisk?

-=- correct.

He felt it was a slipped disk, based on what you
believe he said?

Correct. - After -- and after he had his MRI, I

.Believe he had his -- an MRI related to this, he had

told me it was not a slipped disk.
Okay. All right. That’s fine.

But I had asked him if he could perform the job

.dutiesvrequired for it.

Sure. .
Because I know there’s limitations on what we can
and can’t do within the Americans With Disabilities
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Okay.

By Mr. Smith:

Q.

Mr. Smith: I just have --

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

-- did he tell you he was able to physically

perform all aspects of his position when he had this

conversation with you telling him about the slipped

71

disks -- . X 4

Yes.

-- did you enquire about that?

I did.

And you -- and can you please tell the Court what
you stated to Mr. Wikel? |

My -- I asked him if he was able to pe£form his
duties with Pepsi; he said he was but he would -- he

was looking towards to getting a -- a lighter job,

somethiqg

Were you aware that he applied for a position at

that didn’t require as much lifting.

Walmart on May "10th?

I was not. I was not aware until we saw him at

the store.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay.
Mr. Smith: Thank you, Your Honor.
That’s all I have,
v
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Mr. Bacon: Nothing in follow up,

Commissioner.

72

Commissioner Wilkerson: Thank you, sir.

You may step down.

~

Mr. Papay: Okay.

.Commissioner Wilkerson: He can go back ~

‘to Qork, I guess, right?

Mr. Smith: Yes.

Mr. Papay: Can I go?

Mr. Smith: Yes, sure.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes, you’re
déne. Okay.

Mr. Smith: And I’ll give you a call.
Thanks, Landon.

Mr. Papay: Okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: No bther
witnesses, I’m guessing?

Mr. Smith: None, Your Honor.

N

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay, Thank

you. . This concludes the hearing. - Let me

meet with the attorneys for a few minutes.

" think everybody for being here.

A

12:23 P.M.)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
13 CERTIFICATE
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT } .

Be it known that I took the foregoing South Carolina
Workers' Compensation Commission Hearing of Kevin M. Wikel,
vs. PC Metro Bottling; : :

That I was then and there a Notary Public in and for
the State of South Carolina-At-Large; :

That by virtue thereof I was duly authorized to
administer an oath;

That the witness was first duly sworn to testify the’
~truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth,
concerning the matter in controversy aforesaid;

The foregoing transcript of 72 typewritten pages
represents a true, accurate and complete transcription of
the testimony so given at the time and place aforesaid to
the best of my skill and ability;

) That I am not related to nor an employee of any of the
‘parties hereto, nor a relative or employee of any attorney
or counsel employed by the parties hereto, nor interested in
the outcome of this action;

Witness my hand and seal this 4th Day of January, 2015.

_Gloria G. Davis

Gloria G. Davis '

Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires 12/21/21

*This Transcript may contain quoted material, such material.
is reproduced as read or quoted by the speaker. o

*+This is an Official Transcript governed by 25A S.C. Code
Ann. Regs. 67-615 D (Supp. 2000). The unauthorized copying
of this document is deemed to be conversion of an asset
belonging to the Court Reporter.
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